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The Origins of Scouting in Rusthall
1912
	“If I could form the highest ideal for my country it would be this – that it should be a nation of which the manhood was composed exclusively of men who have been, or were, Boy Scouts, and were trained in the Boy Scout theory. Such a nation would be the honour of mankind. It would be the greatest moral force the world has ever known.”
Lord Rosebery - 1912
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	We are seeking :

· Information as to whether or not the Reverend A Tomlinson relinquished his Captaincy of the CLB this year.

· Further information regarding Acting Captain J Petrie.

· Clarification of the CLB rank system.

· Information as to whether or not our Scouts visited Buckhurst Place Scouts’ Farm.

· Information as to whether or not our Scouts met Lord baden-Powell when he visited Tunbridge Wells on 26.10.12.

· Any further events that occurred this year.

· Copies of the Kent & Sussex Courier for this year.

· Any knowledge that you may have of this year.


Can you help ? Please click HERE if you can.
District Numbers

District records show 11 Troops, 9 Scoutmasters (SM) and 10 Assistant Scoutmasters (ASM) with a total of 262 Scouts registered.  Rusthall may not have been included since at this time the Scouts were members of the ICSP of the CLB.

Regular CLB & ICSP meetings

Although the CLB and ICSP often came together for joint activities, drills and inspections, they had separate weekly meetings in the Parish Hall, Rusthall. 

The CLB met twice, on Tuesdays and Wednesdays, at 8.00 p.m. The ICSP on the other hand met just once, at 6.30 p.m. on Wednesdays, perhaps reflecting a younger age group.
Researchers’ Note - The Parish Magazine for February 1912 reported that Second Lieutenant J Petrie had accepted the Acting Captaincy of the CLB Company.  However, there is no mention of the Rev A Tomlinson relinquishing this position.

ICSP members gain awards

From the St Paul’s Church Parish Magazine - February 1912

Researchers’ note: - This report refers to a number of ranks in the ICSP – further investigation is required but it would seem that from this and subsequent reports there are four ‘ranks’. Second Guide and Guide perhaps are the equivalents of Patrol Second and Patrol Leader respectively, but what of the terms Point and Scout?  Our 1914 photograph of the Rusthall Church Scouts clearly shows boys with Lance Corporal, Corporal and Sergeant stripes on their arms – are these CLB ranks and how do they equate to the Scout ranks ?  Did a new member become a Scout and then progress to Point (L/Cpl), Second Guide (Cpl) and Guide (Sgt) ? 
ICSP

Work has been rather interrupted by the various Christmas festivities but we are now settling down again.  
Points Clark, Murrell, Roe and Saunders have been made Second Guides

Second Guide Murrell has won the Second Class badge.
An interesting competition which included map drawing, knotting and signalling took place this month, the winners being Guide Francis, Guide Unsted and Point Clark. 

Another Sham Fight

24 February 1912

and our ICSP lads gain more awards
From the St Paul’s Church Parish Magazine - March 1912
ICSP

An interesting sham fight took place at Farnham on February 24th.  In accordance with the terms of the competition arranged by Captain Caltarns, every Scout drew a map and sent an account of the day’s work. We are glad to be able to say that the maps and reports were well done. 
Guide C. Cox has won the First Class Bar for a second year’s perfect attendance at Drill and Sunday School, and Scout Strudwick has won a First Class medal.

Six Scouts are Confirmed and the ICSP compete
From the St Paul’s Church Parish Magazine - April 1912

The Patrol (together with the CLB) took part in forming a Guard of Honour for the Bishop at the Confirmation Service. Six Scouts were confirmed. 
The result of the man-making competition has been announced with the first prize being divided between Guide Unsted and Second Guide Sanders and the second prize was awarded to Guide Crampton. A special third prize was given to Guide C Cox.
Researchers’ note:- no details of the man-making competition are available – but perhaps “man-making” is a 1912 typing error – perhaps it should read “map-making”.
	Sinking of RMS Titanic

15 April 1912
In the week ending 10th May 1912 numerous subscriptions were received by the Mayor of Tunbridge Wells for the Mansion House Relief Fund opened by the Lord Mayor of London, Sir Thomas Crosby, for the relief of dependants of passengers and crew of the ‘Titanic.’  
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Among the subscriptions was a sum of £7.3s.8d from the Rusthall Church Scouts.
Further April Scouting Activities

From the St Paul’s Church Parish Magazine – May 1912

The Patrol took part in the (CLB) Battalion Field Day at Wadhurst Park. 
Since then they have been busy learning semaphore signalling and 12 of them can now send and receive messages at a reasonable rate.  We soon hope to tackle Morse signalling and then work with lamps.  
We had pleasure welcoming to Rusthall the members of the Horsham Boy Scouts Troop under Scoutmaster E.H. Dewdney.  The Horsham boys arrived on Thursday before Good Friday and were allowed to use the Parish Room as their headquarters until Monday.  On Easter evening we had interesting attack and defence work with them in Speldhurst Woods.
On Easter Day, 24th April, the Scouts joined the CLB at Church Parade.
Scouts raise more funds for 

families of ‘Titanic’  victims
From the St Paul’s Church Parish Magazine - June 1912
The Scouts have been hard at work for the ‘Titanic’ Widows and Orphans’ Fund.  Mindful of the excellent rule which forbids Church Scouts to beg, they asked various kind friends to give them work to be paid for at a fair wage.  About 120 ladies and gentlemen engaged them, the number of jobs undertaken during the week being 170.
The work included the following:  carpet beating, carrying letters, parcels, laundry, coal, manure, sand etc., cleaning knives, pots, sheds, furniture, golf clubs, bicycles, boats, clipping and cutting grass, dandelion picking, errands, gardening, mat shaking, odd jobs, organ blowing, scrubbing passages, conservatories and gates, sweeping paths, typewriting, watering, weeding, washing.  
The amount earned by the 25 Scouts who undertook the work was £7/1/2d, and this, together with 2/6d which was given without work being found, was paid to the Town Hall Fund.  
Hearty thanks are due to those who took the trouble to find work for the young enthusiasts.
Our Scouts gain even more awards

July 1912

From the St Paul’s Church Parish Magazine – July 1912

Semaphore Signallers -  Guides G Francis, E Unsted, and C Cox - Second Guides Clark and Roe.

Second Class Badges  - Points A Saunders, H Hill, A Strudwick and A Francis - Scouts W Coppard, A Holmwood, and B Luxford.

	Scouts attend inauguration of Rusthall Girl Guides

22 July 1912

From The Courier – 26 July 1912

Girl Guides inaugurated at Rusthall

Visit of Miss Baden-Powell


	



On Monday last, a very successful meeting was held at the Rusthall Parish Room, under the chairmanship of the Rev. F. Eden, to inaugurate Girl Guides (in place of the one-time Girls’ Club), in connection with St Paul’s, Rusthall.  
	Much excitement was felt by those present because Miss Baden-Powell took advantage of a stay at Frant to pay an almost surprise visit to the Rusthall meeting.   She was received by a guard of honour, composed of the 1st Company Royal Tunbridge Wells Girl Guides, and the Rusthall Incorporated Church Scouts.  Needless to say, she met with a most hearty reception.  Corporal Haines presented her with a bouquet of pretty red sweet peas.

The Rev. F. Eden, in opening, spoke most enthusiastically of the object and origin of Girl Guides, and he thought that in starting them in Rusthall under the able captaincy of Miss Thorndike, they were certain of success.

Miss Agnes Smyth Baden-Powell
	[image: image4.jpg]





Miss Baden-Powell then praised the appearance and smartness of the 1st Company of the Royal Tunbridge Wells Girl Guides (Royal Kent Laundry), and thought they reflected great credit upon their officers, and urged those present to grasp opportunities rather than to trust to ‘luck’.
Mrs Dunn, the Secretary of the Girl Guides for Tunbridge Wells and district, proceeded to explain what Girl Guides were, and why they were started, emphasising the fact that interests and hobbies were absolutely necessary to healthy girlhood, and that as a Guide she must be fitted to guide in the right way, not only in physical fitness, but also morally and intellectually, giving the girls real strength of mind and character, first and foremost being the lesson of helpfulness to others, consideration for the weak, and the obligation to do ‘good turns’.  The three promises a girl made on joining included loyalty to God and King, and trying to help others, and that a Guide could not but benefit and be beneficial to others under such a scheme. 
The ‘Buttercup’ and ‘Daisy’ Patrols, (the Junior Guides) then gave a demonstration of bed-making with patient inside, changing both upper and lower sheets with great expedition, and showing also how a broken collar-bone etc., should be treated; and some of the Church Scouts gave a display of drilling.
About 57 girls gave in their names at the conclusion to Captain Miss Thorndike, and the official declaration of the new Company will be 1st Rusthall, St Paul’s Own.  Any girls wishing to join should communicate with the Captain, Bretlands, Rusthall.
Researchers’ note – We have been informed my Mrs Janet Cook (past Tunbridge Wells District Guide Commissioner and widow of the late Harry Cook, past Tunbridge Wells Scout District Service Team Leader & District Commissioner) that Miss Agnes Smyth Baden-Powell was Sir Robert Baden-Powell’s younger sister and lived in Speldhurst.
Miss Baden-Powell (16 December 1858 – 2 June 1945) was most noted for her work in establishing the Girl Guide movement as a female counterpart to her older brother's Scouting Movement. 
Scout and Guide Collaboration

Apart from the Courier report in July 1912, we have no further information about the background to the formation of the Rusthall Guide Company, nor whether the Girls Club from which the Guides were drawn continued as a separate entity.  It is common knowledge that from the very early days of Scouting, girls as well as boys were attracted by the sense of adventure on offer.  We have no evidence of girls wanting to join the Scouts in Rusthall but elsewhere the loose organisation of Scouting at the time made it easy for boys and girls to join together in patrols if not troops, even though they would not have been recognised by Scout Headquarters.
In the early days (before 1914) there were very few collaborative activities involving Scouts and Guides and in Rusthall it would appear that these tended to be restricted to church parades or social events associated with the church.  ‘Official’ collaboration between Scouts and Guides generally was limited and perhaps to some extent actively discouraged.  Marjorie Campbell’s book ‘The Story of Guiding in Kent, 1910-1960’ (The Girl Guides Association. County of Kent. Printed by Perry, Son and Lack Ltd., Dartford, Undated but 1961). carries an interesting quote from a member of the 1st Rusthall Guides, Mrs Janson Potts.  She recalled that ‘on one occasion we went for a trek to a neighbouring heath where we fell in with a Troop of Scouts who came back with us and helped to push our cart up the hill.  We enjoyed this very much but found that we had apparently committed the unpardonable sin of fraternising with the Scouts’.
The Scouts visit Buckhurst Park
3 August 1912
From Rusthall News, The Courier – 9 August 1912

	On Saturday last Mrs Middleton Rogers kindly entertained the Rusthall Boy Scouts to a trip to Buckhurst Park, followed by tea at the Dorset Arms. The party, who were accompanied by Mrs Middleton Rogers and Miss Tomlinson, had a most enjoyable time.  A hearty vote of thanks was accorded Mrs Middleton Rogers, who in reply spoke a few kindly useful words to the boys.
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No further details of the trip are available although it is evident that this was a visit to Buckhurst Park, Withyham, the ancestral home of the Sackville family and Earl De La Warr.  The most famous part of the Buckhurst Park estate is the 100 Acre Wood immortalised by AA Milne in Winnie the Pooh.  Milne lived in nearby Hartfield, another of the villages on the Buckhurst estate
Mrs Rose Janet Middleton Rogers (nee Fell), was the wife of Mr Henry Middleton Rogers JP, of Rusthall Elms and is known to have been an active supporter of the Rusthall village community and of St Paul’s Church, Rusthall.  Although of Scottish ancestry, she was married to Henry Middleton Rogers at Withyham.  It is possible that Miss Tomlinson was the sister of Rev A Tomlinson, Scout Leader.
From the St Paul’s Church Parish Magazine - September 1912

The Scouts have had several treats this month. On 3rd August, Mrs M Middleton Rogers very kindly arranged an outing to Buckhurst Park, Withyham. 
The Scouts were shown over the Church and then had lunch in the park.  
Most of the day was spent in the Scouting game ‘flag-stealing’ which gave the boys every opportunity of showing what they could do in a strange country in the way of acting under cover and observations.
A sumptuous tea was prepared for them on their return and they sat round two rival camp fires and did ample justice to it.  
Three hearty cheers were given for Mrs Middleton Rogers for the great kindness in joining this enjoyable treat.
Researchers’ note – the Courier report of this event differs slightly in that it states that tea was taken at the Dorset Arms – maybe the campfires were held in the grounds of the pub.

Buckhurst Place Scouts’ Farm

From “Twenty-One Years of Scouting”

Published 1929

	An outstanding event of 2012 was the launching of the Scouts’ Farm at Buckhurst Place, near Tunbridge Wells, on the borders of Sussex and Kent, Here, with the assistance of Mr Benjamin Newgass, the Chief Scout was able to put into operation a scheme which he had long had in mind, namely, the training of Boy Scouts on the land with a view to their making a success of an agricultural career later, whether at home or Overseas.

During his recent visit to America the Chief had visited the George Junior Republic at Freeville; and he had also studied at first hand the methods of the Little Commonwealth in Dorset, two experiments of government of boys by boys.
At the Scout Farm, however, the principles which had already proved themselves in the Scout method of training were found to be applicable and all that was necessary, so far as administration and discipline were concerned.
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The Court of Honour and the Patrol System were applied to the Buckhurst Farm Scout Troop as in an ordinary Scout Troop and, if possible, with even greater success.

Buckhurst Place (note the magic initials “B-P” recurring in its title) consisted of a main farm for instructional and demonstration purposes, and also a series of smaller homesteads, each of which was the particular property of a Patrol of Scouts. Each Patrol had to devote a certain amount of time to work on the main farm, thus learning in a practical manner the methods of stock-keeping, market gardening, dairy farming, poultry-keeping and general farm management.
In addition to this each Patrol managed one of the small homesteads, being entirely responsible for its upkeep, and selling the produce to the main farm at current market prices.
Thus it behoved each member of the Patrol to do everything in his power to bring about success for his Patrol, since there was a keen spirit of emulation among them.

Under Mr Mealing, the first Principal, with his assistant, Mr Poe, who later succeeded him, every side of farming and its business management was taught, and the whole work of the place, including the cooking and housework, was carried out by the boys themselves.

For over two years the farm flourished and carried on its work. The initial difficulties had been successfully surmounted, and a really bright future seemed assured, when the European war intervened. As in the case of many other such institutions, the dearth alike of students and instructors made it practically impossible to carry on, and the farm was finally closed down in 1917.
The majority of the Buckhurst Scouts went Overseas, as had been anticipated. Not, as they had hoped, for the peaceful ploughing of some far-away corner of the Empire, but to France and Flanders, Mesopotamia and Gallipoli.

Most of them sacrificed their lives, and if the training in agriculture which they had received at Buckhurst served them to no better end than to dig trenches, it is certain that the other side – the character training – stood them in good stead to the end of their journey “and perhaps beyond”.
From those few who survived letters have reached Headquarters from various parts of the world, acknowledging the debt which their writers owed to their farm school.
Troops are required to register

August 1912
Kent County Scout Headquarters issues a notice that ‘When new Troops are formed the SM should at once apply to County Headquarters for form “C” so as to enable the Troop to be registered.’  It was noted that ‘some Troops already formed have not been registered’.  
Researchers’ note - Did RusthallI ICSP (Church Scouts) register ?  Did this registration apply to all Troops or only those designated as B-P Scout Troops ?

Kent County Emblem to be worn by Scouts

At around this time arrangements were made for the production of ‘The White Horse of Kent’ badges for Scouts. All Scout Troops were encouraged to wear the emblem on their uniform.
Scouts Hold Up Motor Car

17 August 1912

From the St Paul’s Church Parish Magazine - September 1912

The next important item in the month’s diary was the holding up of a motor car at Southborough on 17th August.  
An old and tried friend most good naturedly made a special journey from London in order to give the Scouts a novel experience.  
The car was supposed to be bringing supplies to a besieged force.  It was allowed to advance by three different roads in any order and to use each of them twice.   The car might be stopped for ten minutes by five Scouts but no set of five Scouts were allowed to hold it up more than once.  
It was to be considered destroyed if 18 Scouts could surround it.  
The honour of the Rushall boys it must be said was retained in that they were deservedly successful and managed by some smart work to smash it up in a most effectual way.  
A neighbouring shop was then arrested and the Scouts were allowed to choose four pennyworth of refreshments.  The choice in some cases was appalling, but the services of a doctor were not required which speaks well of the Scouts’ constitution.

The CLB Southern District Camp
Bognor
August  1912
The Courier of 23rd August 1912 carried a report of a completed camp and a forthcoming one in September.
The Southern District Camp of the Church Lads’ Brigade was again held this year at Bognor. 
There were about 500 of all ranks under canvas, and, in spite of the rough and wet weather, they spent a very enjoyable time. Of the number mentioned, the Tunbridge Wells Battalion contributed 120, represented by St James’, Rusthall, Pembury, Tonbridge, and Sevenoaks Companies.  
The camp was under the command of Colonel FA Yorke, and the Brigade-Major and Organising Secretary was Mr R. Saunders Johnson.  
The inspection was abandoned owing to the rough weather. During the height of the gale experienced on one day, in which the wind was estimated at 80 miles an hour, three large marquees in the camp were blown down, smashing tables, crockery, lamps etc. 
The St James’ Company won the challenge cup for rifle shooting, open to the Southern District, for the sixth year in succession. 
The second announcement in Rusthall News of 23 August recorded the forthcoming Incorporated Church Scouts Camp to be held at Reigate (probably at Glover’s Farm as this was a regular ICSP and CLB site) from September 2nd to 9th.  Between 80 and 100 Scouts were expected to be under canvas.
The ICSP Camp 
Reigate

2 to 9 September 1912
From the St Paul’s Parish Church Magazine – October 1912
A most successful camp was held from September 2nd to September 9th in a field at Reigate Hill, kindly lent by an old CLB friend, Major Douglas. The patrols represented were:  St James’ Tunbridge Wells, Sevenoaks, Rusthall, and St Andrews’ Bournemouth.  The total number of Scouts was 67, our own total being 14.  The weather, with the exception of one night, which was rather wet, was excellent   

Reveille was greeted each day at 7 am with a prodigious cheer.  Then after plentiful ablutions in pails, the bugle called for silence for prayers.  Every morning rations were issued at 7.35 am and at 7.45 am came physical drill. At 8.30 am the cookhouse bugle went and the ‘beasts were fed’. Officers’ breakfast followed at 9.00 am.
Every day all the Scouts were paraded for general fatigues and the whole field was systematically scoured for stray pieces of paper.  At 10.00 am came the CO’s parade which generally consisted of practice for the march past and movement in extended order, concluding with the inspection of tents and blankets.  On most days this was followed by bathing parade at Reigate Corporation Baths.  Lads’ dinner was at 1.00pm and Officers’ at 1.30pm.  The afternoon was left open for Scouts to do as they wished but everyone had to be in for tea at 4.30 or 5.00pm.
After that came exciting Scout games such as rescuing the prisoners, despatch running etc.  A special feature of the camp was the ‘Silence March’.  After Scouting was over patrols had to march back in single file, sometimes for over two miles through pitch dark woods.  Talking and whispering was stopped and care taken not to step on sticks or stones. A fine exercise in discipline and self control.  On return, a short service with three minute address was held before supper rations were issued.  The bugle then sounded for silence for prayers and a few minutes later for ‘lights out’.
On Saturday camp was inspected by the Ven. the Archdeacon of Tonbridge.  Sports were held in the afternoon.  The potato race was won by Point W. Coppard and Scout S.J. Piper.  Second Guide E. Roe won second prize for signalling.  On Sunday there was a celebration of Holy Communion at 7.30am, and morning service at 10.30 am in the marquee... In the evening evensong was attended at St Mark’s Reigate.
The CO was Major Johnson and the Adjutant Captain Petrie.
ICSP Promotions and Awards

Second Guide to Guide – E.Roe

Point to Second Guide – H Hills

Scout to Point – A Holmwood

‘Man Making’ Competition won by Scout F Piper and Point B Luxford

The ICSP report concluded with a notice that there were no Scout vacancies and those wishing to join would be put on the waiting list.

Did our Rusthall Scouts meet the Chief ?
26 October 1912

The Courier of Friday 25th October 1912, carried the following announcement of the forthcoming visit of Sir R. Baden Powell.  It is to be hoped that Scout Troops had received prior warning of the event to ensure a good turn out on the Saturday.
On October 26th, the occasion of the visit of the Chief Scout, Sir R.S.S Baden Powell, to Tunbridge Wells, the County Commissioner hopes that as many Scouts who may be free will parade at the S.E.R. Station (up-side )at 12 noon to be formed into a guard of honour.  The inspection of all the Scouts will take place in the afternoon at the Drill Hall, Victoria Road, probably about 2.15 p.m.  All Scouts must parade by about 1.45p.m.  By kind permission of the O.C. West Kent Territorial Battalion, Scouts will be permitted to use their Drill Hall, Victoria Road, as a rendezvous on October 26th.  Refreshments for Scouts will be provided there at 3.30 p.m.  The County Commissioner hopes that all Scouts will be wearing the Kent White Horse emblem.  The parades will be under District Scoutmaster F. Ponsford assisted by District Scoutmaster G. Lawrence Dunn.
Researchers’ note - Is F Ponsford a relative of P and J Ponsford of Rusthall ?
The Courier of 1st November carried a report of Baden Powell’s visit which listed a number of Troops that had participated.  Rusthall was not mentioned though this does not mean that there were no representatives there.  It is unlikely that a Scout would pass up the opportunity of greeting B-P.   However, it is of interest to note that around this time there was a distinction between Church Scouts (Incorporated Church Scout Patrols of the CLB) and those referred to as ‘Baden Powell’ Scouts. 

BOY SCOUTS REVIEWED

‘B-P’ Visits Tunbridge Wells
Saturday was a red letter day for the Baden Powell Boy Scouts of Tunbridge Wells and the neighbouring towns and villages. 
The event which was so full of interest was the visit of Lieut.- General Sir Robert Baden-Powell, the Chief Scout and founder of the movement which has captured the imagination all over the Empire.  ‘B-P’s’ primary object in visiting Tunbridge Wells was to address the educational conference under the auspices of the teachers’ associations, and naturally enough, the Scouts seized the opportunity of extending a hearty public welcome to heir popular Chief.
	Consequently the town was invaded on Saturday morning by Troops from Tonbridge, Brenchley and Matfield Grange, Penshurst (Lord de L’Isle and Dudley’s Pioneer) Broadwater Forest, Sevenoaks and Edenbridge.  St Barnabas’ Troop also paraded.  A large number of the Scouts mustered outside the S.E and C.R. station, and awaited General Baden Powell in drizzling rain.  The hero of the day arrived from Town shortly before half past 12 and was received by the Mayor and Mayoress of Tunbridge Wells (Colonel and Mrs Sydney Sladen). 
	Sir Robert Baden-Powell at Tunbridge Wells
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He proceeded to the Vale Road entrance where he inspected the Scouts, and then to the accompaniment of three rousing cheers, stepped into the Mayor’s motor car and driven away.

After attending the teachers’ luncheon, Sir Robert inspected 196 of the Boy Scouts at the Territorial Drill Hall.  The lads were under the command of Colonel Delamain,  District Commissioner, DSM Ponsford  and SM Dunn.  Others present included J H Rosseter County Commissioner, Admiral Galloway, Commander Garrett etc.

The Scouts, taken as whole made a smart-looking and well-set up body of lads.  The Chief Scout walked down the lines, inspecting each lad, and complimenting many on their appearance.  The Review over, he announced that Patrol Leader Harold Martin and Scout Leonard Martin of the Sevenoaks Troop had been awarded a certificate and letter of thanks respectively.  ‘B.P.’ explained that the lads were being rewarded for helping their father who severely injured his arm, and undoubtedly saving his life.  He wished the lads to be heartily congratulated. 

Sir Robert Baden-Powell, addressing the assembled troops, expressed his pleasure at seeing so many present contrary to his expectations.  He hoped they were carrying their Scout principles into their school work, because a Scout was always on duty, whether at school, at work or at play. He would like someday to see their work in the field and camp, for he heard they were doing very good work.  He hoped they would all continue to carry out the Scout Law, to honour God and the King, obey the Scout Law, and do a good turn to people every day.  His concluding advice was to ‘stick to it’.  

The arrival and departure of General Baden-Powell was witnessed by large crowds of the public. 
A CLB / ICSP Display

30 October 1912
From the St Paul’s Parish Church Magazine – December 1912
A CLB/ICSP display was given in the Parish Room on 30th October.  So many tickets were sold that it was necessary to have a repeat programme on the following Saturday.
Did Rev A Tomlinson relinquish his Captaincy 
this year ?

A letter from a parishioner appeared in the December issue of the Parish Magazine thanking Rev Tomlinson and Mr Petrie for.... ‘all the trouble in arranging Scout training ...  Rusthall had benefitted from the interest taken by the Rev Tomlinson.....Everybody will regret that his other duties compel him to hand over the charge.. We know that his mantle will have fallen on a Commander who will keep up his work which has shown such good returns’. 
Researchers’ note -  Did Mr Petrie –whose name appears in previous reports as Captain Petrie – assume responsibility for leading the Rusthall ICSP ?
Scout Movement Milestones - 1912
	January
	January - Royal Charter of Incorporation.

	
	

	August
	First Scout disaster – nine drowned off Leysdown.

	
	

	October
	B-P marries Miss Olave Soames.


Click HERE if you have any further information regarding this year
or

HERE to return to our Navigation page
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From The Sun newspaper





The Dorset Arms, Withyham, c1906





From a letterhead of the Buckhurst Place Farm School





Arrival at the South Eastern Railway Station.


Guard of Honour of local Boy Scouts
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